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Otago Museum main entrance. 
Cover image: The Museum of Broken Relationships. 
Scan the QR code to view the PDF online.



3

CO
N

TEN
TS4	 Foreword, Chair, Otago Museum Trust Board

5	 Year in Review, Director, Otago Museum

6	 2019 – 2020 Key Highlights, Achievements, Challenges 

9	 Our Mission 

11	 Otago Museum Trust Board

12	 Māori Advisory Committee 

12	 Honorary Curators 

13	 Association of Friends of the Otago Museum 

14	 Goal 1: Whakamarakatia te mana o te kohika taoka – 
    	 Upholding the mana of the collection

18	 Goal 2: Whakaurua ā tātou hāpori kit e whakaohooho te miharo, te manawa reka,
    	 te whakamarama hoki – Engaging our community to inspire wonder, curiosity 
     	 and understanding

22	 Goal 3: Whakahaumaru te wāheke i te ao hurihuri –
     	 A secure and sustainable future in a changing world

25	 Otago Museum Staff List 2019 – 2020

27	 Appendix 1: Statement of Service Performance 

52	 Appendix 2: Financial Statements 

83	 Appendix 3: Independent Auditor’s Report 



4

FO
REW

O
RD

It is perhaps paradoxically that I write this foreword 
to our Annual Report with both a great sense of 
pride and also a strong feeling of humility. 

Perhaps that dissonance is characteristic of this 
strange period we are living through. The year has 
been full of some great highs – for example the 
inspiring and hugely successful James Cameron 
– Challenging the Deep exhibition – and some 
real lows, when we were plunged in to lockdown 
in March, immediately losing 40% of our revenue 
and worrying about how we could pay our staff.
The year has also been run at two speeds – flat 
out or stop. Although I have to say, even in the 
‘stop’ phase it was like the duck sitting serenely 
in the flowing stream; there was a lot of paddling 
under the water.

In the full speed ahead mode, we built new 
relationships, perhaps most notably with NIWA. 
In conjunction with the Cameron exhibition, the 
visit of their ice-strengthened research vessel, 
the Tangaroa, and the open day on board was a 
highlight for me (and my five-year-old daughter). 

We took our science outreach far and wide, 
from Bluff to Whitianga (part of the Tuia 250 
projects), to the Chatham Islands and the wider 
Pacific (through MBIE Curious Minds funding for 
Extreme Science II). But, even more importantly, 
we supported our local communities across Otago 
and the rest of the southern region.  

We celebrated our slightly younger neighbour’s 
sesquicentenary with Dare to be Wise. We 
supported the Central Stories Museum and Art 
Gallery in Alexandra whilst they sought a new 
museum manager. We provided curatorial 
support across the region. 

We also diverted a river to extract and preserve 
the only moa footprints discovered in the South 
Island. This was an amazing story and is one that 
captures the agility of our team (operationally 
and, in this case, physically) and the importance 
of good relationships. The process of securing 
consents and agreements in the short window of 
time available to protect the footprints could only 
be achieved through the good will of all those we 
work with. Come and see the story for yourself in 
our Te Huna a te Moa display.

Then COVID-19 hit pause, generating a frantic 
period of work. Closing a large, complex facility 
like the Museum in two days takes incredible 
work. Almost all administrative tasks had to be 
moved online. Applications for financial support 
had to be prepared in days, instead of the weeks 
or months that we would usually have for such 
sizeable documents. This again showed the ability 
of our staff to work rapidly and flexibly. I am so 
proud that, through the governmental support 
secured by these efforts, not one member of staff 
lost their job through the COVID-19 lockdown. I’d 
also like to acknowledge the support of the Mayor 
and DCC staff during this time who gave us a 

feeling of security that meant we could undertake 
a commitment to retain and support all our staff. 
Thank you.

Then, during lockdown came a period of 
reflection. As I hope is conveyed above, my 
reflections are on how lucky we are to have such 
dedicated and talented staff at the Museum.
It is the staff, through Ian and the senior 
management team’s stewardship, that achieve the 
fantastic outcomes we almost take for granted. 

Perhaps one of the best known whakataukī , 
that many of us hear every University graduation 
ceremony, springs to mind. Like the message in 
that whakataukī though, it is not just the people 
who make up the staff of the Museum that are 
important. It is all the people that the Museum 
touches. It is the people who have built the 
Museum into what it is today, the visitors that 
have supported it over the past one hundred and 
fifty (one) years, the children of today who will be 
tomorrow’s staff, and the unborn children who 
are yet to come and be inspired by the Museum. 
The most important thing is the people, but the 
people in the broadest sense. That layer upon 
layer foundation upon which everything is built 
over the generations – the Museum’s whakapapa 
if you will.

The proof of this was in the reopening. We 
carefully ensured, through partnership with 
colleagues in the Department of Microbiology 
and Immunology, that we could put in place 
appropriate protection under Level 2 to reopen. 
We used our processes as opportunities to 
provide information and education. And you 
came. Despite the absence of international 
visitors, our visitor numbers rose back to near-
normal numbers. We still had over a quarter 
of a million visitors this year. 

Thanks to you, we have weathered this storm so 
far. Please continue to visit the Otago Museum – 
your Museum. I hope you feel as at home there 
and have as strong a sense of connection to the 
Museum as I and all the staff have. I hope to see 
you there soon.

David Hutchinson
Chair
Otago Museum Trust Board
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It’s incredible how quickly things can 
change. As you will learn from reading 
this report, it was pretty much business as 
usual for Otago Museum right up until the 
middle of March. Outreach efforts were in 
full flow, the Education team was working 
with large numbers of schools, and the 
Collections team were busy changing 
out exhibitions. 

And then, everything changed. 

If you had told me when I was writing 
last year’s annual report that less than six 
months later, I’d be working from home 
inside a personal bubble with the nation in 
lockdown caused by a COVID-19 pandemic, 
I’d not have believed you.

I’m enormously proud of the way the 
Museum team worked together during a 
year of crisis. We faced and resolved many 
challenges in the fast-moving situation 
the nation found itself in late March. Daily 
meetings of the Leadership team initially 
onsite (during the Level 2 and 3 period) 
and offsite via video conferencing later 
allowed us to create and communicate
to all staff and the Board a COVID-19 
Response Plan in less than three days. 
A proposal for home working was rolled
out and tested; this was particularly 
important for the finance team who had 
been using a paper-based approval system. 
Other groups developed and curated a 
completely new ‘digital museum’ section
 of the website called @hOMe.

After 54 days of being closed due to the 
Level 4 COVID-19 lockdown, the Museum 
reopened at 9am on Saturday, 16 May. 
The occasion was marked by a brief 
ceremony attended by the Māori Advisory 
Committee, Trust Board, and staff members. 
After an intense period of activity and 
less than two days after the nation entered 
COVID-19 Level 2, we put in place all of 
the required cleaning and social distancing 
protocols and contact tracking measures 
needed to operate the Museum safely.

The impact of the Level 4 lockdown on 
the Museum, particularly on our finances, 
and the period of uncertainty beyond 
was significant. Overnight, all income 
from the Café, Shop, Venues, Tūhura, 
and the Planetarium disappeared for 
an unknown period.  

Facing an immediate financial crisis, the 
Museum team put together successful 
applications to phase 1 and 2 of the 
Government Wage Support Fund, the 
Strategic Tourism Assets Protection 
Programme (STAPP), and the Wildlife 
Institutions Relief Fund (WIRF). The money 
received, combined with the Board’s 
decision to release some reserve funds, 
made it possible to keep all staff employed. 
Our Leadership team worked hard to create 
a plan that will allow the Museum to sustain 
operations in a very different economic 
environment for the foreseeable future. 

The past year was one of two halves. 
Before the appearance of COVID-19 we 
hosted two world-class exhibitions, that
the Museum was honoured to be the sole 
New Zealand venue for. The blockbuster 

James Cameron – Challenging the Deep, 
focussed on the Director’s career as both 
filmmaker and deep ocean explorer. 
In parallel with the exhibition, major 
sponsorship from NIWA enabled us to 
showcase some of the world-class research 
carried out by New Zealand scientists. 
In contrast, the Museum of Broken 
Relationships was a beautiful, engaging 
exhibition that focused on intimate stories 
of relationship breakups.

The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant 
impact on visitor numbers. For most of the 
year, visitor numbers were tracking close to 
average through February. However, after 
the Museum’s closure in March, just over 
272 000 people had passed through the 
doors by year-end. This represents a fall 
of 21% compared to 2018/19. Despite 
lower than usual visitation, with a satisfaction 
rate of 94% (as measured by Dunedin 
City Council’s Residents’ Opinion Survey), 
we remain one of Dunedin’s best-loved 
cultural attractions. 

Outreach is becoming an ever more 
critical component of the Museum’s 
work. This year, the staff gave lectures, 
presentations, demonstrations, or advice, 
which engaged more than 19 000 people 
in more than 50 communities across New 
Zealand and the Pacific. The focus of our 
outreach effort has rightly been Otago. 

Following the departure of Rachel Wesley, 
we welcomed Dr Gerard O’Regan as the 
new Curator Māori. Dr O’Regan was also 
appointed to the new position of Pouhere 
Kaupapa Māori. This role provides cultural 
advice to the Director and is a member of 
the Executive team and helps ensure that 
iwi values are integrated throughout every 
aspect of Museum operations. 

Next year, a primary focus continues to 
be developing a master plan to fund the 
considerable capital cost of upgrading the 
Museum’s aging facilities and galleries. 
Over the next year, the senior management 
team at the Museum will be working with the 
Board to develop a long-term master plan.

I’d like to record my sincere appreciation to 
the Museum Trust Board members, the 
Māori Advisory Committee, and the 
Association of Friends of the Otago 
Museum. The time they collectively 
invest together with their guidance and 
encouragement is crucial to the Museum’s 
success. I’d particularly like to thank Board 
Chair Professor David Hutchinson and Māori 
Advisory Committee Chair Matapura Ellison 
for their support throughout the year.

Finally, I must acknowledge the Museum 
staff. The challenges we overcame this 
past year proved their worth and is a real 
tribute to their hard work and dedication.  

Ian Griffin
Director
Otago Museum
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@hOMe

one
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three
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five

James Cameron – 
Challenging the Deep

Museum 
of Broken 
Replationships

Tuia 250
programmes

Tangaroa 
open day
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Extreme Science ll

Pyjamarama!

Te Huna a te Moa

Dare to be Wise –
150 years of
the University
of Otago

No. 9: work made
in a number 9 year 
– Jim Cooper
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VISION

MISSION To inspire 
and enrich our 
communities, 
and enhance 
understanding of 
the world through 
our collection, our 
people, and the 
stories we share.

Kia whakaoho – 
Awaken wonder, 
curiosity, and 
understanding 
in our world.



To collect, preserve, act as a regional 
repository for research, display, and 
otherwise make available to the people 
of the present and the future, material 
and information relating to the natural, 
cultural, and scientific heritage of the 
peoples of the world.

To promote interest and education in 
the natural, cultural, and scientific 
heritage of New Zealanders.

To place particular emphasis on those 
activities as they relate to the greater 
Otago region, world history, natural 
history, and science, and, where 
appropriate, their relationships 
in a wider, global context.

To maintain a world-class Museum 
for the people of Otago and Aotearoa, 
the Museum has made a commitment 
to values that shall underpin our 
operations and practices:

THE 
OTAGO 
MUSEUM 
TRUST 
BOARD 
ACT 
1996 

VALUES

We will care for our taoka, 
tākata, and whakapapa* 

We will guard our taoka, whakapapa, 
and tākata for future generations

We will grow and foster expertise through 
research, learning, and collaboration

We will collaborate and create partnerships

We will ensure our mana is evident in our 
integrity, ethical decision-making, and leadership

MANAAKITAKA

KAITIAKITAKA 

TOHUKATAKA  

WHANAUKATAKA

RAKATIRATAKA

* Taoka – refers to the tangible and intangible treasures of the Museum; tākata refers to the people of Otago Museum – its staff, 
   visitors, partners, stakeholders, and communities; whakapapa refers to the Museum’s relationships and history.

10
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Otago Museum Trust Board
							     
Chair							       Appointed by
Professor David Hutchinson 					     University of Otago
BSc, PGDipArts, PhD, MRSNZ, CPHYS, FInstP, FNZIP, MRSC, MInstD 

Deputy Chair
Councillor Kate Wilson					     Dunedin City Council
(to November 2019)
BA, LLB

Laura Black 						      Dunedin City Council
(from November 2019)						    
BBS

Members
Laura Black 						      Dunedin City Council		
BBS

Professor John Broughton					     Mana whenua
CNZM, ED, JP (Rtd) BDS, PhD, PGDipComDent, DipGrad

Brigid Casey						      Association of Friends of the Otago Museum
MCom, GradCert(TertTeach), DipGrad, PGDip(Tour), BHSc

Professor Peter Dearden					     University of Otago
BSc (Hons), PhD
	
Councillor Gaynor Finch					     Regional funding authorities 
NZ Vet Nurse, Hearings Commissioner				    (Clutha District Council)

His Worship, Mayor Aaron Hawkins				    Dunedin City Council
(from October 2018)	

Professor Nancy Longnecker 					    Otago Institute for the Arts and Sciences 
BSc (Hons), MSc, PhD					     (The Royal Society Te Apārangi)		

Councillor Chris Staynes					     Dunedin City Council
BSc, CMInstD

Councillor Kate Wilson					     Dunedin City Council
(to November 2019) 
BA, LLB

Councillor Lee Vandervis					     Dunedin City Council

Ex Officio
Treasurer
Jamie Adamson (Deloitte)

Otago Museum Director
Ian Griffin
PhD, CRSNZ

Secretary
Jane Gregory
BAppdMgt

Audit Finance and Risk Management Committee (AFRM)
Kate Wilson (Chair to November 2019)
Gaynor Finch (Chair from November 2019)
David Hutchinson (ex officio Chair)
Laura Black (from November 2019)
Peter Dearden 
Chris Staynes

Staffing Committee
Trust Board Chair 
Trust Board Deputy Chair
AFRM Committee Chair

Executive Committee
Convened as and when required
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Māori Advisory Committee 
The Māori Advisory Committee’s role is to facilitate an effective, positive relationship
between mana whenua, Otago Museum, and Papatipu Rūnaka of Te Tai o Araiteuru.
			 
							       Rūnaka
Matapura Ellison (Chair)                                                		  Puketeraki

Professor John Broughton					     Puketeraki
CNZM, ED, JP (Rtd) BDS, PhD, PGDipComDent, DipGrad

Jane Graveson						      Moeraki

Koa Whitau-Kean 						      Moeraki

Marshall Hoffman                                                               		  Hokonui	

Pat Hoffman                                                  	   		  Hokonui	

Paulette Tamati-Elliffe					     Ōtākou

Winnie Matahaere						      Ōtākou
BA

Honorary Curators/Research Associates 
							       Specialist area
Dr Melville Carr						      Philately
PhD, DIC, FNZIC 				  

Dr Rosi Crane 						      Science history
PhD

Dr Robert Hannah						      Classics
MPhil, FSA, FRSNZ 

Anthony Harris						      Entomology 
MSc (Hons) (First class) 	     

Associate Professor Steve Kerr				    Entomology
PhD 	

Dr Jane Malthus 						      European dress
PhD

Dr Bronwen Presswell					     Parasitology
PhD 

Dr Anthony Reay						      Geology 
PhD 

Professor Glenn Summerhayes 				    Oceanic archaeology
OL, FSA, FLS, FRAI

Joel Vanderburg						      West Africa

In memoriam – Joel Vanderburg 

1960s and early 1970s Joel lived and worked in West Africa. 
He loved the people he met, the music he heard, and the 
places he visited there. He’d also collected quite a few tangible 
reminders of those years.  

A plan soon formed for Joel and Patti’s collection to become 
the basis of an exhibition. West Africa: Rhythm and Spirit 
opened in OM’s Special Exhibitions Gallery in 2009. It attracted 
large numbers of visitors locally, and then toured to Porirua, and 
Melbourne. A highlight during its time in Dunedin was the visit
of Joel’s friend, the late Ghanaian master weaver, Gilbert 
“Bobbo” Ahiagble. 

After the exhibition, Joel agreed to join the Museum staff as an 
Honorary Curator, West Africa. He started working through our 
African collection, adding information to the database.  As well 
as that, he helped with public enquiries relating to Africa, and 
advised us on requests for identifications, or possible acquisitions.  

Joel was a charming, intelligent, interesting colleague, who 
shared surplus giant courgettes from the prolific Vanderburg 
garden, and whose conversation was sought during staffroom
lunch and coffee breaks. Just last year he gave a talk to the 
Association of Friends of the Otago Museum, and was invited 
to deliver a paper at the 42nd annual conference of the African 
Studies Association of Australasia and the Pacific.
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Association of Friends of the Otago Museum

Funders, partners and supporters

President’s Report 

Despite the interruptions of COVID-19, the Friends of the Museum 
continues to enjoy good support, with membership as of August 
2020 numbering 108.  We are continuing to find ways to engage 
with our membership and the general public.

Highlights from the last 12 months include our Friends in Focus 
lunchtime talks, with a diverse range of speakers including 
Professor Daphne Lee on her work at Foulden Maar; and a 
journey through Africa with the late Joel Vanderburg, a passionate 
and erudite curator who is greatly missed by all who knew him.  
Although the COVID-19 lockdown has led to the postponement 
of some other events until next year, we resumed out lunchtime 
talks in fine style with Dr Ian Griffin and Marcus Richards, with 
attendance figure of 20 – 30 people at each. 

The second annual H D Skinner lecture on the 17 October 2019 
by Professor Ian Barber was also a great success, with the Barclay 
Theatre filled to overflowing. Dr Gwynaeth McIntyre will be 
presenting this year’s lecture on Wednesday 21 October.

In contrast, the Friends Christmas function, held in November, was 
lightly attended and the future of this event is yet to be decided. 

In respect to the future, the Council is exploring several exciting 
opportunities for new events and projects for 2021, including a 
cross-over talk with the Friends of the Dunedin Public Art Gallery, 
and the opportunity to be involved in the Museum’s upcoming 
archiving project. 

This year, we farewelled two Council members, Adrian Mitchell and 
Shan White, who stepped down for personal reasons. They both 
contributed a great deal and we wish them well, and welcome 
Warren Jowett and Bronwyn Simes to the Council. 
 
We would like to acknowledge Brigid Casey, the Friends Treasurer, 
and all the members of the Friends Council who have worked 
so hard this year to support the Association. We also extend our 
warmest appreciations to Rachel Cooper, without whose help 
liaising between the Council and the Museum, none of our 
achievements this year would have been possible.

Kia ora rawa atu, many thanks,

Cushla McKinney PhD, MBHL
President
Council of the Association of Friends of the Otago Museum

Council of the Association of Friends of the Otago Museum
Patron
Margery Blackman

President
Julie Pearse (Acting President to 1 August 2019, then Vice-President)
Cushla McKinney (from 1 August 2019)

Treasurer
Brigid Casey

Council members
Jenny Child
Anne Ford
Doug Holborow
Cushla McKinney
Adrian Mitchell (to January 2020)
Shan White (to March 2020) 

Dunedin City Council

Waitaki District Council 

Clutha District Council

Central Otago District Council 

Queenstown Lakes District Council

Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment: 
Participatory Science Platform and Curious Minds Funds

Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade

Ministry of Education: LEOTC Fund

The Dodd-Walls Centre for Photonic and Quantum Technologies

MacDiarmid Institute for Advanced Materials 
and Nanotechnologies. 

Perpetual Guardian Trust

The University of Otago

Otago Polytechnic

Ministry of Culture and Heritage: Tuia – Encounters 250 Fund

International Planetarium Society

National Institute for Water and Atmospheric Research

Otago Daily Times

Otago Community Trust

Deloitte

Distinction Dunedin

Mediaworks

WebbFarry Lawyers

Society of Māori Astronomy Research 

Universities of Otago, Canterbury, and Auckland 
across a wide range of science departments 

Otago University Student Association 

GNS Science/Te Pū Ao 

New Zealand Integrated Ocean Discovery Program 

Local astronomical societies throughout New Zealand  

Antarctica New Zealand 

University of Canterbury

University of Auckland

Regional museums throughout Aotearoa
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WHĀIKA TUATAHI 
GOAL ONE

WHAKAMARAKATIA TE MANA 
O TE KOHIKA TAOKA 
Upholding the mana 
of the collection 
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Otago’s unique early history, with its gold rush spawning one
of the most vibrant cities in the Southern Hemisphere, has 
endowed the Museum with internationally significant collections. 

Today the Museum houses some 1.5 million taoka spanning
the Humanities and Natural Sciences. They focus on the unique 
characteristics of Dunedin and Otago but also represent cultures 
and species from around the world.

Caring for this national treasure is central to our organisation’s 
role, and ensuring that we have the capacity to do so is essential. 
This year we continued to build on the strength of our Collections 
and Research team with two appointments: Shannah Rhynard-Geil 
joined Conservation, providing vital assistance to an area which
had long been short-staffed; and, in a coup for the Museum, 
Gerard O’Regan took over as Curator Māori, also joining the 

Executive team as Pouhere Kaupapa Māori. Gerard’s vast 
experience, mana, and Kāi Tahu network strengthen our 
capacity to serve the rūnaka and care for the taoka within 
our collections, as well as make clear our aspiration to be 
a truly bicultural organisation.

Our Conservation Manager, Nyssa Mildwaters, already the 
President of New Zealand Conservators of Cultural Materials, 
A Pū Manaaki Kahurangi, was also selected to be part of 
the prestigious Getty Conservation Institute’s Managing 
Collection Environments programme this year.

Managing collections of global significance is a role that 
Otago Museum does not take lightly, and having a staff 
who are experts within their fields enables us to shoulder 
this responsibility. 

Upholding the mana of the collection 

Pinned ant specimens, New Zealand. 
Gift of A W Don; Otago Museum Collection.
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Last year’s most significant addition to the Museum, the only 
South Island moa footprints in existence, were exhibited as 
Te Huna a te Moa. 

In a first for Otago Museum, the exhibition was developed 
to both display the footprints to the public, while simultaneously 
enabling our Conservation team to manage and monitor their 
preservation. There has been a lot of international interest 
around this, and it is an important project for the Collection 
team and Kyeburn community. 

Another significant inclusion was the donation of Michael 
Denny’s collection of subfossil extinct bird skeletons. 
Featuring a large amount of moa material from the North 
Otago area, the donation has been gladly received by the 
Natural Science team. The discovery that there was an 
extinct South Island goose specimen within the donation 
was a highlight for the department, and for the collection.

Increasing the collection

Te Huna a te Moa exhibition opened 23 November 2019 
within the People of the World gallery.
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Our collections provide irreplaceable records against which 
we are constantly building and modifying our knowledge 
and understanding of our natural and cultural worlds. 

They represent a vital part of our nation’s heritage and play an 
integral role in the international scientific accord to document 
our world. The extraordinary riches within our collections also 
allow us to explore both cultural and natural history in ways that 
inform New Zealand’s understanding of its origins, its peoples, our 
relationship with our environment, and our responsibilities 
in a global context. 

Otago’s biodiversity research collections were a vital resource 
in Dr Robert Hoare’s (Maanaku Whenua – LCR) taxonomic and 
biosystematic revision of New Zealand’s Noctuid moths. 

This year the culminating publications of Hoare’s revision 
research provides the most up-to-date species lists and 
descriptions to identify, measure and more accurately 
understand our native moth biodiversity. The humble moth 
is an important part of healthy forest ecosystems and this 
type of taxonomic research underpins the work of conservation 
biologists studying at-risk habitats and the effects of climate 
change. It highlights the pivotal role of our local natural 
science collections nationally. 

With a vast collection of over 1.5 million items, and a strategy 
to build upon them to address gaps and build on research 
strengths, collections are continually being developed, 
documented, and cared for. 

The Museum closed collections access from 1 January 2020 
for 6 months to enable the Collections team to undertake 
inventory, cataloging, rehousing, and imaging. During this time 
the Collections team updated a staggering 66 776 individual 
objects records in the Vernon database.  A core function of Otago 
Museum will always be to care for the collections, to research and 
develop them, and to share them with our communities; their 
documentation being a key contributor to their discoverability. 

As a major metropolitan Museum, that employs nationally 
recognised experts, we have a responsibility to share that 
expertise to help support the collections of Otago and 
Southland; a region where there are few active conservators. 

Our Conservation team is very active, travelling to regional 
museums to upskill staff, provide advice, and guide 
conservation and collections work.

A major piece of work has been the conservation of Southland 
Museum and Art Gallery’s wet collections. The collection of over 
150 specimens was brought from Invercargill for assessment and 
treatment.  The Conservation team have also been working in 
Stewart Island; Jo Massey, after over a decade trying to arrange 
conservation of the Rakiura Museum’s wet collections, was 
successful this year, and our team spent a week on the Island 
assessing their collection in order to bring it to Otago for 
remedial work prior to display in the new purpose-built Rakiura 
Museum. We also supported the North Otago Museum’s 
redevelopment during this period, completing staff training 
and remedial treatment of a variety of objects.  

These are just three of many instances that the team has 
supported our regional museums and the collections of 
the lower South Island.

Understanding 
the collection

Supporting the 
regional collection

Kane Fleury, Assistant Curator – Natural 
Science identifying subfossil bird bones 
from a recent acquisition.

Conservator Shannah Rhynard-Geil and 
Curator Chloe Searle discussing the mounting 
of recently conserved species jar on its return
to Waitaki Museum
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WHĀIKA TUARUA
GOAL TWO

WHAKAURUA Ā TĀTOU HĀPORI 
KIT E WHAKAOHOOHO 
TE MIHARO, TE MANAWA REKA, 
TE WHAKAMARAMA HOKI 
Engaging our community to inspire 
wonder, curiosity and understanding



19

This period we have certainly inspired wonder, curiosity 
and understanding through the world-class exhibitions that 
we bought to Otago. James Cameron – Challenging the 
Deep came to New Zealand for the first time. This exhibition 
brought people from across the country to visit the Museum, 
and even James Cameron himself, for a weekend of talks
and engagement with our community. 

Our organisation also brought the incredible Museum of
Broken Relationships to New Zealand. This internationally 
acclaimed exhibition had previously been to the major cities 
of the world. Gaining media interest from around the country, 
the beauty, joy, and depth of the exhibition was astounding; 
it was wonderful to be able to offer the people of Otago 
something so special and usually reserved for larger 
population centres. 

One of our Tuia 250 projects, Mercury Rising, inspired wonder 
and curiosity in our night skies.  High school students spent 
a weekend at Mount John observatory, learning how to use 
telescopes, and audiences in four of New Zealand’s main 
centres were treated to a series of talks by astronomy experts. 
Culminating early one November morning in Whitianga, 
experts and local community came together to witness and 
photograph the transit of Mercury, just as Captain James Cook 
had done, from the same spot, 250 years previously.  

Inspiring Wonder

Group photo of Otago Museum Staff and 
James Cameron during his visit in late 2019.

A locally donated leather jacket on 
display within the Museum of Broken 
Relationships exhibition.

One of our Tuia 250 projects, Mercury Rising. 
In Whitianga, experts and the local community 
came together to witness the transit of Mercury 
across the Sun. 
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We aim to be a mirror for our community, giving everyone 
a voice and a platform within our walls. Our organisation 
strives to be a place where under-represented communities 
feel at home, and to support events and exhibitions that 
increase understanding; connecting all the parts of our 
community together. 

Our Events and Programmes team have worked with 
over 90 organisations and individuals, providing a 
multitude of events for Otago. Our annual iNDx 
exhibition featuring neuro-diverse artists is one that 
is looked forward to by many. 

Areez Katki, an award-winning, queer multi-disciplinary 
artist from the Parsi community, through his exhibition 
Bildungsroman, brought understanding of this minority 
group to Dunedin. 

Our Pacific Community days allow both the people of 
Otago to learn more about Pasifika arts and culture, 
but also connect our Pasifika community with our 
collection from the island nations that surround 
New Zealand. 

Our support of Art+Water brings our academic and 
scientific community together with local artists to 
co-create artworks inspired by science. Korero Pono 
was an exhibition where those with experience of the 
criminal justice system spoke to an audience about their 
lives, in order to decrease prejudice. 

These events help many segments of our communities to 
understand one another and better connect to each other. 

Providing a 
platform for all

Otago Museum has strong relationships with organisations in 
Dunedin and throughout New Zealand. These partnerships 
help us to better serve our community, and allow us to offer 
more than we could if we were operating alone. 

The Dodd Walls Centre is one of our closest relationships, 
sharing staff, projects, and equipment, and bringing the 
science of light and quantum-technology to the community. 

The National Institute of Water and Atmosphere (NIWA), 
has also proven an invaluable partner, allowing us access to 
specimens, images, and knowledge to bring an exhibition of 
New Zealand’s deep waters to our galleries. NIWA also brought 
their research ship, the Tangaroa, to our city for a community 
open day that attracted over 700 visitors. This was a great 
opportunity for our region to experience ship life, and to better 
understand the world-leading ocean science undertaken in 
Aotearoa New Zealand. 

The MacDiarmid Institute is yet another organisation with whom 
we have established an ongoing partnership, sharing their work 
around nanotechnology and material science with communities 
in the lower South Island. 

Our relationships across the University of Otago continue to 
grow. We have strong links with many departments. Students 
from the Centre for Science Communication and the Marketing 
Department, regularly undertake internships and projects with 
Museum teams. During the COVID-19 crisis, the Museum drew 
on expert microbiology expertise from the University to enable 
us to open safely to the public. 

Strong partnerships serving 
our community together

Areez Katki, award-winning, queer multi-
disciplinary artist brought understanding of the 
Parsi community to Dunedin with his exhibition 
Buldingsroman.

Otago Museum staff preparing for the Tangaroa 
Open Day event which brought over 700 visitors
to view NIWA’s research vessel.
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Our local community have not been the only ones to benefit 
from our Science Outreach team. 

Utilising funding from both the Ministry of Business, Innovation 
and Employment and the Ministry for Foreign Affairs and Trade, 
we have taken teams to remote areas in New Zealand with the 
Extreme Science II project, and throughout the Pacific with the 
Far from Frozen project. 

Extreme Science II visited the West Coast, Northland, Stewart 
Island and Great Barrier Island, engaging with more than 2000 
children. Responses from teachers and communities were 
overwhelmingly positive, with teachers particularly pleased 
with the physics content, which in feedback said was difficult 
to teach without this support. 

Far from Frozen was taken to Fiji, touring many of the local 
schools to demystify the science behind climate change.  
The tour aimed to build a better understanding of the causes 
of climate change, and the projected impacts on their nations, 
as well as discuss ways to reduce or mitigate these impacts. 
The tour was extremely well received, with many schools 
adopting the content to continue teaching beyond the visit.  

Providing outreach to 
underserved communities  

Otago Museum is the largest museum in the lower South Island. 
This position brings responsibility to support regional museums, 
both with their collections, and with their governance. 

In February 2020, the Museum was approached by the Trust board 
of Central Stories Museum and Art Gallery in Alexandra to assist 
while they recruited a new museum manager. Visitor Experience 
Manager, Teresa Fogarty, was stationed in Alexandra three days 
a week as the temporary manager. Over the following six months, 
Teresa became an integral part of the Central Stories team, 
providing invaluable support in recruitment, development of 
health and safety systems, and day-to-day management of the site. 

Our support for smaller, regional museums can be seen 
throughout Otago and Southland; we are determined to help 
the historic sector thrive and ensure that all our communities 
have access to knowledge of what came before. 

Supporting our 
regional community  

This year we have brought history, te ao Māori, te tiriti, and science 
to many throughout Otago and Southland through our Tuia 250 - 
He Taura Tākata programme through which our Education team 
visited 32 schools and engaged with almost 4800 people. 

Through this programme we supported teachers in remote 
areas where there are limited resources, delivering specialised 
programmes that link to Museum resources and expertise.

Science Showoffs was another externally funded project that 
aimed to show that science is everywhere and fun. The team 
engaged young people in many places ranging from shopping 
malls to skate parks, and from sports fields to beaches. The finalé 
was a competition where youth presented their own scientific 
demonstrations as part of the Vogel Street Party.

Engagement and education 
in the southern region

Science is everywhere as visitors to Meridian 
Mall discovered through the Science Show Offs 
popup science shows.

The Lab in a Box mobile delivery platform enables 
the Outreach Team to bring Museum-level science 
engagement into the remotest communities.
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WHĀIKA TUATORU
GOAL THREE

WHAKAHAUMARU TE WĀHEKE 
I TE AO HURIHURI 
A secure and sustainable future 
in a changing world



The event that 2020 has revolved around, turned the world, 
and our organisation, upside-down. 

While this was a year of hardship for many, our response 
to this disaster proved our institution’s resilience and 
sustainability. We let science direct us, and our reaction 
and processes became a blueprint for others to follow, 
leading our sector and our community. 

When news that the pandemic sweeping the world had 
come to New Zealand’s shores, we immediately formed a 
COVID-19 Response team and reached out to University 
of Otago virologists, Professor Miguel Quiñones-Mateu 
and Associate Professor Michelle McConnell. 

Letting experts guide us, they reviewed areas posing a 
higher risk of viral transmission, and we immediately 
decommissioned high-touch interactives. We instituted 
new processes for cleaning, provided signage for the 
public to increase social distancing, offered hand sanitizer 
stations, mask-wearing for public-facing staff, and put up 
screens to provide a barrier between staff and public where 
there was a risk of closer contact. These actions helped 
our staff to feel protected, and ensured the public felt safe.  

This partnership with the University enabled us to act 
more quickly, and because of this, we found that other 
organisations around the country were following our lead. 

Our relationship with the Microbiology Department led 
to collaboration on a joint paper titled, Re-opening After 
COVID-19 in New Zealand, published in the Journal of 
Conservation and Museum Studies. This publication will 
ensure this information was captured and shared sector-wide.  

After Level 4 ended, we formed a ‘Thank You Essential 
Workers’ campaign. Essential workers and their families 
received free entry to Tūhura in recognition of their efforts 
over lockdown. This was widely marketed around Dunedin, 
and had the added benefit of ensuring the wider community 
recognised that Otago Museum was a safe place to revisit.  

The experience of COVID-19 was difficult. Financial 
pressures were huge, and the fear of redundancies was 
real, but our response to this showed our resilience as 
an organisation; our ability to move nimbly, and to work 
together as a team of 128. 

COVID-19: 
Lockdown and uncertainty

As an organisation that is led by science, has the largest science 
outreach team in New Zealand, and offers a programme to 
Pacific nations on climate change, it is important for many 
reasons that we are environmentally sustainable. 

Trying to find where we can make better choices, creating 
less waste, and reducing emissions has been the goal of our 
Sustainability Group. One of these changes has been the 
milk used in our Café. Partnering with local company Spout 
Alternatives, all regular milk is now delivered by keg. This has 
saved over 7000 plastic bottles annually, and was very popular 
with our online audience. 

We also upgraded the Collections freezer. The new 
environmentally-friendly refrigerant means 2000 times less 
carbon emissions for any accidental leaks, a massive reduction 
which will make real difference to our overall footprint.

Environmental 
responsibility

In accordance with government regulations during 
the COVID-19 pandemic, Otago Museum adopted 
plastic shields to reduce the spread of the virus 
between visitors and Museum staff.

In an effort to reduce Otago Museum’s 
environmental footprint, Spout Alternative was 
chosen as the Café’s milk supplier. This choice has
reduced the usage of 7000 plastic bottles annually. 
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COVID-19 also showed us that in many ways much of our 
future is a digital one. While our doors were closed, our 
audience was still eager to connect with education and 
outreach that was rooted firmly in Otago, and our digital 
Museum, @hOMe was formed. 

The Science Engagement team put together entertaining 
and educational videos featuring science experiments and 
stargazing that families could do at home. 

From making ginger beer to flying teabags, children 
everywhere looked forward to science-based activities 
when schools were closed and parents were looking for 
resources online. Front of House staff formed activities 
and blogs around collection items and galleries where 
they had specialised knowledge. The Design team used 
images of our taoka to make digital puzzles, which proved 
highly popular on social media. 

The Education team pivoted to digital too. While they were 
unable to deliver Ministry of Education funded curriculum-
based activities in person, the team created online activities, 
forming an online platform for teachers and the public to 
access. Classrooms throughout Otago used these resources, 
which mixed educational information in blogs with craft or 
outdoor activities. Children could find birds and insects that 
live in our local region, make woven baskets for Easter, and 
learn about our extinct ancient species.  

In all these online offerings the curatorial teams were active: 
fact-checking, providing advice, and linking to our collection. 

The move to online was also felt in our physical space. 
Now that visiting international speakers look to be unlikely 
for some time in the future, we needed to connect our 
audience with experts in an online space. The Barclay 
Theatre was upgraded with new state-of-the-art audio-visual 
technology, so that with online video conferencing software, 
we can now provide Otago with speakers from around the 
world who are leaders in their fields. 

Moving our offerings online future-proofs our organisation 
and enables us to reach audiences not just in our southern 
city, but across the globe.  

Moving to an online future

As with every not for profit organisation without central 
government funding, searching for revenue to pay for 
operating costs is something that occupies a lot of resources. 

Otago Museum has proven an entrepreneurial and agile 
organisation in this regard. Our commercial arms and 
project-based grants cover over 50% of our overall revenue, 
and we are constantly looking for new ways to ensure our 
financial future. 

Creating outreach experiences that can be utilised by other 
institutions across New Zealand, like Mighty Small Mighty 
Bright, is one way that our team’s creativity and ingenuity 
can be seen nation-wide. Partnering with NASA to get 
funding for cameras aboard a flight over the Antarctic to 
capture images of the Southern Aurora was another moment 
in this period that shows how our organisation can find 
opportunities everywhere. 

Otago Museum shows itself to be more than just its collection 
of national and international significance, but an organisation 
that is able to stretch its capabilities to meet the future, 
whatever that may hold. 

Securing our organisation

A large effort was put in place to bring informative 
and educational content online during the COVID-19 
pandemic. This included developing an online 
educational platform for schools. 

Otago Museum partnered with NASA to get 
funding for a camera aboard a flight over the 
Antarctic to capture images of the Southern Aurora.



25

Otago Museum Staff 2019 – 2020
Executive
Murray Bayly, BCom, CA 					     Director, Finance, Facilities and Commercial  
Craig Grant, PhD						      Director, Visitor Experience and Science Engagement  
Jane Gregory, BAppMgt  					     Executive Assistant  
Ian Griffin, JP, PhD, CRSNZ 					     Director  
Robert Morris, M.Soc.Sci  					     Director, Collections, Research, Education and Design  
Gerard O’Regan, PhD					     Pouhere Kaupapa Māori  

Collections, Research, Education and Design
Shanaya Allan, BDes Communication				    Exhibitions and Creative Services Officer 
Barbara Anderson, PhD					     Research Scientist   
Stephanie Baldwin						      Sleepover Presenter 
Emma Burns, BSc						      Curator, Natural Science  
Mikayla Cameron						      Sleepover Presenter
Jen Copedo, BA (Hons)					     Assistant Collection Manager, Humanities  
Nicole Dunford						      Sleepover Presenter
Kane Fleury, MSc						      Assistant Curator, Natural Science   
Amanda George, PhD					     Education Officer  
Emily Gray, MSc 						      Education Officer (full-time) 
Anne Harlow, MMHS					     Collection Manager, Humanities  
Paola Healey						      Sleepover Presenter
Prudence Jopson, Dip Visual Arts				    Exhibitions and Creative Services Officer 
On Lee Lau, MSc						      Assistant Collections Manager, Natural Science  
Aleisha Lord, BA/BCom					     Sleepover Presenter  
Isaac Martyn						      Sleepover Presenter
Kallia McCoid, BA						      Sleepover Presenter
Jamie Metzger, MAppSc					     Assistant Curator, Māori  
Nyssa Mildwaters, ACR					     Conservation Manager  
Christiana Moeroa						      Sleepover Presenter  
Max Mollison, BDes Fashion (Hons 1st Class)			   Exhibitions and Creative Services Officer  
Gerard O’Regan, PhD					     Curator Māori  
Freya Pike						      Sleepover Presenter  
Cody Phillips, PGDipSci					     Collection Manager, Natural Science  
Shannah Rhynard-Geil, MSc 					     Conservator  
Luke Robb						      Sleepover Presenter  
Craig Scott, BDes Communication				    Head of Exhibitions and Creative Services  
Sofian Scott, BA						      Tuia Educator 
Annah Taggart, BDes Communication				    Exhibitions and Creative Services Officer   
Kate Timms-Dean, PhD					     Education Manager  
Rachel Wesley, PGDip Arts (distinction)				   Curator, Māori  
Moira White, MA (Hons 1st Class)				    Curator, Humanities  

Finance, Facilities, and Commercial
Paula Barragan-Ramano					     Shop Assistant  
Brenda Barron						      Building Services Officer 
Lee-Arna Blair						      Assistant Accountant  
Callum Booth						      Café Cook  
Catherine Carr						      Venues Host  
Gina Cavanagh						      HR Manager  
Conway Dean						      Facilities Officer  
Margot Deveraux, PGDip CApSc				    Project Manager, Health and Safety Advisor  
Kayla Dwyer						      Café Host 
Benjamin Farry						      Kitchen Assistant  
Wilson Fisher						      Venue Host  
Alana Gathercole-Smith					     Café Host  
Garry Gibson						      Production and Projects Officer  
Vanessa Graham						      Venue Manager  
Helen Gregory						      Shop Assistant  
Blake Haines						      Cafe Host  
Sarah Harkness, National Cert Vet Nursing			   Shop Assistant   
Danielle Harris						      Accounts Assistant  
Caitlin Harrison-Craig					     Venues Host  
Steven Hird, NVQ Museum Studies				    Museum Guide, Weekend Supervisor  
Richard Hockney						      Facilities Officer  
Stella Hudson						      Café Host  
Penny Jacks						      Venue Host 
Stephanie Kaan, BCom, CA					     Accountant  
Nichola Keen						      Café Host  
Geoffrey Kern, BA						      Assistant Café Cook  
William Kilgour-Hand					     Café Host  
Jeremy Kirkwood						      Kitchen Assistant 
Fa’ao’osala Lale						      Venue Host  
Athena Lam, BHK/BPhty					     Venue Host  
Ashleigh Lamb, Dip Tourism					     Café Supervisor  
Kira Lazaro Morato, MSc 					     Shop Assistant  
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Bronwyn Lewis, BCapSc					     Shop Assistant  
Emma Loader						      Café Host
Samanta Luzzi King, BA					     Shop Manager  
Nicholas McKenzie, BPhEd					     Venue Host   
Teremoana Munro						      Kitchen Assistant  
Matthew Newton						      Facilities Officer  
Zachary Nicholls						      Kitchen Assistant  
Christopher Patchett, DipGrad Sustainable Practice		  Facilities Manager   
Emma Perry						      Café Host  
Imogen Ramsay-Te Hauroa, Dip HospMnt			   Venue Officer  
Kai Richards						      Kitchen Assistant 
Bronwyn Robson						      Café Cook  
Emma Ronald						      Venue Host  
Melissa Simpson						      Venue Host 
Paris Skipper						      Venue Host 
Andrew Spiegel						      Café Cook Supervisor   
Brian Templeton						      Café Host  
Kerry Varcoe						      Café Manager  
Aliza Waterhouse						      Venue Host  
Sofia Yanez-Flores						      Shop Assistant  

Marketing and Development
Andrew Charlton, BSc 					     Developer, Systems and Interactive Media  
Max Levitt-Campbell, BA/BCom				    Marketing Assistant  
Hannah Molloy						      Marketing Manager  
Kate Oktay, BA						      Content Editor  

Visitor Experience and Science Engagement
Kathleen Adams						      Communicator 
Sophie Adams, PgDipWLM					     Science Communicator   
Oli Aylen, MSc						      Communicator  
Jessica Barder, BA						      Senior Science Engagement Coordinator  
Lana Bolton-Marston, PGDip					     Front of House Officer
Samantha Botting, MSc					     Science Centre Manager  
Chris Brooker, BEcot					     Science Communicator   
Chris Burgess, BA						      Science Communicator  
Suzanne Caulton, Dip Craft Des				    Programmes and Events Officer   
Emily Chatfield, MA					     Museum Guide  
Eliza Ching, BA						      Communicator  
Merryn Chynoweth, BA (Hons)				    Museum Guide  
Amy Closs						      Communicator  
Claire Concannon, PhD					     Senior Science Engagement Coordinator 
Octavia Cook, BDes					     Communicator  
Rachel Cooper, BEd					     Programmes and Events Manager  
Natalia Costa Lopes, BA (Hons)				    Communicator  
Carla de Boer, BSc						      Gardener  
Amadeo Enriquez Ballestero, PGDip				    Science Presentation Coordinator  
Conor Feehly						      Communicator 
Teresa Fogarty, PGDip, Museum Management 			   Visitor Experience Manager  
Laura Franklin, BSc (Hons)					     Communicator  
Amanda George, PhD					     Museum Guide  
Catriona Gower, MPhil					     Science Communicator  
Pearl Gray, BA (Hons)					     Communicator  
Quinn Hawthorne, BDes Communication			   Science Communicator  
Ireland Jacobs, BSc (Hons)					     Science Communicator  
Oana Jones, BIT						      Full Dome Producer  
Samantha Kingsbury, BBiomedSc 				    Science Communicator  
Stephen Mathew, MSc					     Science Communicator  
Georgia McCombe, PGDip					     Communicator  
Emma McCoy, BA						      Communicator  
Ross McKenzie						      Museum Guide  
Phoebe McKenzie, BA					     Communicator  
Joshua Meikle						      Communicator 
Katrin Middleton, BSc (Hons)					     Communicator 
Emma Morris, BA						      Museum Guide  
Alice Morrison, BA						      Science Communicator  
Alysha Painter, BSc						      Science Communicator   
Nina Rivett						      Science Centre Manager  
Sandra Sesto-Dekic						     Operations Coordinator  
Anthony Stumbo, PhD					     Living Environments Officer  
Hannah Schmierer						      Communicator  
Kimberly Simpson						      Museum Guide  
Elizabeth Vitali, PGDip					     Communicator  
Russell Walsh, PhD						      Communicator  
Alice Waterman, LLB/BSc					     Museum Guide  
Lisa van Halderen, MSc					     Communicator  
Nathalie Wierdak Carlesso, PGrad				    Science Engagement Manager
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Glenn Summerhayes, Honorary Curator (Melanesian Prehistory), continues to provide feedback to staff on written material, and responds to 
public enquiries.  
 

GOAL 2: ENGAGING OUR COMMUNITY TO INSPIRE WONDER, CURIOSITY AND UNDERSTANDING/ WHAKAURUA Ā TĀTOU HĀPORI KI TE WHAKAOHOOHO TE MIHARO, TE MANAWA REKA, TE WHAKAMARAMA HOKI 

2.1  We will be a valued community resource 

Attract more than 350 000 
visitors to the Museum. 
 
 

Not achieved 
272 265 Visitors to Museum 
(348 108) 

The Museum was closed to the public for 53 days from 24 March to 15 May 2020 due to COVID-19. The New Zealand border was closed to 
almost all travellers. 
 

Offer free admission to the 
Museum’s permanent 
galleries 

Achieved 
 
13 free exhibitions (7) 
 
14 826 people participated in 
public engagement programmes 
and events (18 722) 
 

Free exhibitions 
• Enter displayed in People of the World gallery from 4 February 2019 – 12 January 2020.  
• 2019 Otago Wildlife Photography Exhibition displayed in the Beautiful Science gallery from 30 March 2019 – 18 July 2019 (4750 

visitors 1 – 18 July). 
• Dare to be Wise – 150 Years of the University of Otago displayed in 1877 gallery from 1 June 2019 – 24 November 2019 (24 481 

visitors 1 July – 24 November). 
• Korero Pono displayed in the H D Skinner Annex from 8 – 15 July 2019 (349 visitors). 
• NIWA’s Dive Deep into Ocean Science displayed in the Beautiful Science gallery 21 July 2019 – 3 July 2020 (51 960 visitors 21 July 

2019 – 30 June 2020). 
• iNDx Art Exhibition 2019 displayed in the H D Skinner Annex from 3 – 18 August 2019 (340 visitors). 
• Taoka Online displayed in the Museum stairwell from 5 August 2019 – 8 March 2020. 
• Art + Water displayed in the H D Skinner Annex from 14 – 23 September 2019 (418 visitors). 
• Te Huna a te Moa displayed in People of the World gallery from 20 November 2019 and is ongoing. 
• Museum of Broken Relationships displayed in the 1877 gallery from 20 December 2019 – 15 March 2020 (24 760 visitors). 
• Bildungsroman – Areez Katki displayed in the H D Skinner Annex from 11 January – 9 February 2020 (1043 visitors). 
• No.9: work made in a number nine year – Jim Cooper displayed in People of the World gallery from 27 January 2020 and is ongoing. 
• Shades: Classic Shapes and Fabulous Frames from the Museum’s Sunglasses Collection displayed in the Museum stairwell from 8 

March 2020 – 13 September 2020. 
 
Free public engagement programmes and events 
 
14 826 people participated in 118 (111) individual public offerings developed or collaborated on by the programmes and events team.  Of 
that, 54 were public talks, 16 live performances, 13 workshops, 9 family-fun days, and 6 Makerspaces.   
 
5358 (7152) adults, 3325 (5384) children and 6 143 (1727) general public engaged in these offerings – 98 of which were free to attend, 18 at a 
nominal paid entry paid charge, and two by koha. 
 
These consisted of a variety of workshops, public kōrero, Makerspaces, live performances, and general event offerings with highlights being:  
The After Dark@OM R18 evening events – specifically unValentine’s Day with 400 attendees, the ever-popular school holiday Makerspaces 
with 5248 participants, the Museum's collaboration with NIWA on the RV Tangaroa open day and James Cameron’s public talks during his 
Dunedin visit. 
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  RREESSPPOONNSSIIBBIILLIITTYY
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

On behalf of the Otago Museum Trust Board

Chairperson

Board Member

Date

In our opinion, these financial statements and statement of performance fairly reflect the financial position 
and operations of the Otago Museum Trust Board for the year ended 30 June 2020.

We have the responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls designed to provide 
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting.

We are responsible for the preparation of the Otago Museum Trust Board's financial statements and 
statement of performance, and for the judgements made in them.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  PPEERRFFOORRMMAANNCCEE
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

NNootteess 22002200 BBuuddggeett 22001199
$$000000 $$000000 $$000000

Grants-Government & Other 1,214 961 1,005
COVID-19 Wage Subsidy 752
Local Authorities 4,527 4,527 4,310
Public 3,081 3,333 3,157
Legacies & Bequests
Investment Revenue - Dividends 129 135

- Interest 124 170 144
Realised Net Gains on Sale of Financial Instruments 15(a) 77 120

TToottaall  RReevveennuuee 4 99,,990044 88,,999900 88,,887711

EExxppeennddiittuurree

Employee Benefits Expense 5(a) (5,307) (5,116) (5,028)
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense (1,441) (1,108) (1,527)
Other Expenses 5(b) (3,519) (3,800) (3,810)

TToottaall  OOppeerraattiinngg  EExxppeennddiittuurree  (10,267) (10,024) (10,365)

SSuurrpplluuss//((LLoossss))  ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr ((336633)) ((11,,003344)) ((11,,449944))

The accompanying notes form an intergrated part of these financial statements.

OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCOOMMPPRREEHHEENNSSIIVVEE  RREEVVEENNUUEE  &&  EEXXPPEENNSSEESS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

NNootteess 22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

OOtthheerr  CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee  RReevveennuuee  &&  EExxppeennssee

Available-for-sale financial assets
valuation gain/(loss) 15(a) 260 165

TToottaall  OOtthheerr  CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee  RReevveennuuee  &&  EExxppeennsseess  ((NNeett  ooff  TTaaxx)) 226600 116655

Surplus/(Loss) for the year (363) (1,494)

TToottaall  CCoommpprreehheennssiivvee  RReevveennuuee  &&  EExxppeennssee  ffoorr  tthhee  YYeeaarr ((110033)) ((11,,332299))

The above statement of financial performance & statement of comprehensive revenue & expenses should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  PPOOSSIITTIIOONN
AAss  aatt  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

NNootteess 22002200 BBuuddggeett 22001199
$$000000 $$000000 $$000000

Cash & Cash Equivalents 20(a) 2,844 2,101 2,852
Trade & Other Receivables 8 267 218 393
Inventories 9 288 219 230
Other Financial Assets 10 1,736 340 1,312
Prepayments 88 43 113

TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss 5,223 2,921 4,901

NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss
Other Financial Assets 10 5,850 5,652 5,365
Property, Plant & Equipment 11 15,038 16,334 16,001
Intangible Assets 12 3 6

TToottaall  NNoonn--CCuurrrreenntt  AAsssseettss 20,891 21,985 21,372

TToottaall  AAsssseettss 26,114 24,906 26,273

CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess
Trade & Other Payables 13 953 743 1,081
Employee Entitlements 14 435 362

TToottaall  CCuurrrreenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  1,388 743 1,444

TToottaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess 1,388 743 1,444

NNeett  AAsssseettss 2244,,772266 2244,,116633 2244,,882299

EEqquuiittyy

Reserves 15 13,302 10,647 12,712
Accumulated Surplus/Deficit 16 11,424 13,516 12,117

2244,,772266 2244,,116633 2244,,882299

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCHHAANNGGEESS  IINN  EEQQUUIITTYY
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

22002200 BBuuddggeett 22001199
$$000000 $$000000 $$000000

Equity at Beginning of Year 24,829 25,197 26,158
Total Comprehensive Revenue & Expenses (103) (1,034) (1,329)
EEqquuiittyy  aatt  EEnndd  ooff  YYeeaarr 2244,,772266 2244,,116633 2244,,882299

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWW  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

NNootteess 22002200 BBuuddggeett 22001199
$$000000 $$000000 $$000000

CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  ttoo//ffrroomm  OOppeerraattiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess
Government, Local Authorities & the Public 9,700 8,504 8,305
Dividends 129 135
Interest Received 119 465 137
Payments to Employees (5,234) (5,003) (4,986)
Payments to Suppliers (3,746) (3,831) (3,657)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities 968 135 (66)

CCaasshh  FFlloowwss  ttoo//ffrroomm  IInnvveessttiinngg  AAccttiivviittiieess
Proceeds from Maturity & Sale of other Financial Assets 1,374 2,200 3,512
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (405) (1,879) (650)
Purchase of Other Financial Assets (1,945) (1,412)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (976) 321 1,450

NNeett  IInnccrreeaassee//((DDeeccrreeaassee))  iinn  CCaasshh  &&  CCaasshh ((88)) 445577 11,,338855
EEqquuiivvaalleennttss

CCaasshh  &&  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss  aatt  tthhee  BBeeggiinnnniinngg  ooff
tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  YYeeaarr 22,,885522 997788 11,,446688

CCaasshh  &&  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss  aatt  tthhee  EEnndd  ooff  tthhee
FFiinnaanncciiaall  YYeeaarr 20(a) 22,,884444 11,,443344 22,,885522

Cash flows from financing activities have not been separately identified in the Statement of Cash Flows as there are no transactions that are considered to be classified as 
financing activities.

The above cashflow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

1 SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS

11..11  RReeppoorrttiinngg  EEnnttiittyy

11..22  SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  CCoommpplliiaannccee

11..33  BBaassiiss  ooff  PPrreeppaarraattiioonn

 
New Zealand dollars are the Museum’s functional and presentation currency.

11..44  SSiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  cchhaannggeess  iinn  tthhee  ccuurrrreenntt  rreeppoorrttiinngg  ppeerriioodd  

There were no transactions in the financial reporting period that significantly affected the organisation.

The organisation receives a large portion of its funding from Council levies but also operates business units which are dependent on visitor 
numbers and the purchase of admission fares. The business units were closed for an eight week period during the Alert 4 lockdown with 
wage costs still being incurred. The receipt of the COVID-19 wage subsidies assisted with wage costs during this time. The Council levies 
also limited the exposure of the Museum to further losses as the organisation moved through the alert levels.

Although New Zealand moved to Alert Level 1 prior to balance date, the country has since moved back to Alert Level 2 and 2.5. As a result 
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the ongoing changes in Alert Levels and restrictions, the business and economic environment is uncertain. 
Given the organisations balance sheet and the range of income streams, the Museum has some flexibility in the short term to protect the 
business before considering longer term financial measures that may be required to its operational activities.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and in future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for heritage assets and the revaluation of certain 
financial instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Heritage assets are valued as per 
Note 1, Property Plant and Equipment, Heritage Assets.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of 
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, and the accounting policies set out below have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The following accounting policies which materially affect the measurement of results and financial position have been applied:

The Otago Museum Trust Board (“the Museum”) is a special-purpose local authority constituted under the Otago Museum Trust Board Act, 
1996.

The Otago Museum Trust Board administers the Otago Museum which is a non-profit making permanent institution, founded by the 
people of Otago for the service and development of their community with a particular responsibility for the natural and scientific heritage 
of the Otago region. The Museum has designated itself as a public benefit entity (PBE) for reporting purposes.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP. They comply with Tier 2 PBE (RDR) accounting standards on 
the basis the Museum is not considered publically accountable or large with expenditure under $30 million per annum. All available 
disclosure concessions have been applied.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Tier 2 PBE accounting standards requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  ((CCoonntt..))

11..55  CCrriittiiccaall  AAccccoouunnttiinngg  EEssttiimmaatteess  aanndd  AAssssuummppttiioonnss

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty include:

22..  SSIIGGNNIIFFIICCAANNTT  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS

22..11  RReevveennuuee  RReeccooggnniittiioonn

Local Authority Levy Revenue

Local Authority Levy revenue is recognised when it is levied.  

Other Revenue

Judgements made by management in the application of Tier 2 PBE accounting standards that have significant effects on the financial 
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant 
notes to the financial statements.

·        Estimating the remaining useful life of various items of property, plant and equipment. If the useful life does not reflect the actual 
consumption of benefits of the asset, the Museum could be over or under estimating the depreciation charge recognised as an expense in 
the Statement of Financial Performance.

·        Determining whether the conditions of a grant has been satisfied, to determine whether the grant should be recognised as revenue in 
the Statement of Financial Performance. This judgement will be based on the facts and circumstances that are evident for each contract.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other functions, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be measurable under the circumstances.

In preparing these financial statements, the Museum has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and 
assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations or future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The outbreak and spread of COVID-19 and the continued economic uncertainty has resulted in impacts to key estimates and judgements 
used in these financial statements. These judgements and estimates are detailed within the following notes: 2.6 (a) (5); 2.8 (c)

Grants are recognised as revenue when they become receivable unless there is an obligation in substance to return the funds if conditions 
of the grant are not met. If there is such an obligation, the grants are initially recorded as grants received in advance and recognised as 
revenue when conditions of the grant are satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and 
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and GST.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to 
the entity. The stage of completion at balance date is assessed based on the value of services performed to date as a percentage of the 
total services to be performed. 

9
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  ((CCoonntt..))

Dividends are recognised when the entitlement to the dividends is established.

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis.  

22..22  LLeeaassiinngg

Operating Leases

22..33  TTaaxxaattiioonn

22..44  GGooooddss  aanndd  SSeerrvviicceess  TTaaxx

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.

22..55  CCaasshh  aanndd  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss

22..66  FFiinnaanncciiaall  IInnssttrruummeennttss

The net GST paid to, or received from, the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing activities, is classified as a net operating 
cash flow in the statement of cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Museum’s Statement of Financial Position when the Museum becomes a party
to contractual provisions of the instrument. The Museum is party to financial instruments as part of its normal operations. These financial
instruments include cash and cash equivalents (including bank overdraft), trade and other receivables, other financial assets, trade and
other payables and borrowings. The relevant accounting policies are stated under separate headings.

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms 
require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net 
of transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss which are initially valued at fair value.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the IRD is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial 
position. 

Payments made under these leases are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Some services within the Museum are performed by volunteers. These volunteer services are not recognised as revenue or expenditure by 
the Museum.

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as 
operating leases.

Lease incentives received are recognised in the surplus or deficit as a reduction of rental expense spread on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

The Museum is exempt from income tax in accordance with Section CW39 of the Income Tax Act 2007. Accordingly, no provision has been 
made for income tax.

Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except for receivables and 
payables which are recognised inclusive of GST. Where GST is not recoverable as an input tax, it is recognised as part of the related asset or 
expense.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  ((CCoonntt..))

2.6 (a) Financial Assets

(1) Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

(2) Fair Value Estimation

(3) Foreign Currency

(4) Loans and Receivables

(5) Impairment of Financial Assets

Equity securities held by the Museum are classified as being available-for-sale due to the fact that they are all tradable on public markets 
and are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined in the manner described later in this note. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair 
value are recognised directly in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment losses which are recognised 
directly in the Statement of Financial Performance. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve is included in the Statement of Financial Performance for the 
period.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, less any provision for impairment. An allowance for doubtful debts is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Museum will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the allowance is the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest 
rate. The amount of the allowance is expensed in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance date. The quoted market 
price used for financial assets held by the Museum is the current bid price. 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Museum uses 
a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices or 
dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term investment and debt instruments held. 

Foreign currency transactions (including those for which forward exchange contracts are held) are translated into NZ dollars, being the 
functional currency, using the spot exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are recognised in the Museum’s surplus or deficit.

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are 
classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less 
impairment. Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each Statement of 
Financial Position date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For financial 
assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Financial Assets are classified into the following specified categories: ‘available-for-sale’, and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification 
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

The effective interest method, referred to below, is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest 
revenue over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the interest rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the Museum’s right to 
receive payments is established.  
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  ((CCoonntt..))

2.6 (b) Financial Liabilities

(1) Trade and Other Payables

22..77  IInnvveennttoorriieess

22..88  PPrrooppeerrttyy,,  PPllaanntt  aanndd  EEqquuiippmmeenntt

The Museum has the following classes of property, plant and equipment:

Operational Assets and Heritage Assets

22..88  ((aa))  OOppeerraattiioonnaall  AAsssseettss

Cost/Valuation

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Additions

Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated.

Operational assets include land, buildings, plant and equipment, motor vehicles, office furniture and equipment.

Inventories acquired through non-exchange transactions are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis with an appropriate 
allowance for obsolescence and deterioration.

The Museum has considered the potential impact of COVID-19 as part of its impairment testing of assets on its statement of financial 
position. Because of the range of income streams and as a significant portion of revenue is not dependent on trading activities, there has 
been limited impact of the Governments response to COVID-19 on the organisation.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. In most instances, an item of property, plant and 
equipment is recognised at cost. Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Museum and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade 
receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is 
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance 
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and 
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed through the Statement of Financial Performance to the extent the carrying amount of the investment at the date of 
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method.

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Museum becomes obliged to make future payments resulting from 
the purchase of goods and services.
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SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  AACCCCOOUUNNTTIINNGG  PPOOLLIICCIIEESS  ((CCoonntt..))

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated as detailed below:

OOppeerraattiioonnaall  AAsssseettss RRaattee
Land Nil
Buildings 3% S.L. - 50% D.V.
Café Equipment 8% - 50% D.V.
Computer Equipment 8% - 67% D.V.
Emergency Response Team Equipment 18% D.V.
Exhibits Nil - 50% D.V.
Furniture, Fittings & Equipment 8% - 67% D.V.
Golden Kiwi Lottery Fund Equipment 10% D.V.
Motor Vehicles 26% - 30% D.V.
Equipment 10% - 67% D.V.

Disposal

  
22..88  ((bb))  HHeerriittaaggee  AAsssseettss

Heritage assets are valued at cost or fair value at the date of acquisition and are not depreciated.

All assets acquired prior to 30 June 2001 are recognised at cost at the date of acquisition. As a large number of the Heritage assets are 
donated or subsidised generally such cost will be nil unless they have been acquired as a result of a purchase by the Museum.

All assets acquired from 1 July 2001 are recognised at fair value at the date of acquisition for donated or subsidised assets where it is 
possible, practical and meaningful to arrive at such fair value or at cost where the assets have been acquired as a result of a purchase by 
the Museum.

The bulk of the Museum’s collection is represented by unrealisable or irreplaceable items and it is impracticable and cost prohibitive to 
value them on a “Market Based” or “Depreciated Replacement Cost” basis. As a consequence the Museum’s collection is undervalued in 
these financial statements.

The result of this accounting policy means that the vast majority of the Museum’s collection, having been obtained prior to 30 June 2001, is 
effectively valued for accounting purposes at nil, or at historical cost for those few items purchased.

Since 2016, the accounting standards require donated assets to be recognised at fair value and the difference between cost and fair value 
recognised as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. A fair value for donated assets received has not been determined for all 
donated assets as it was not considered possible or practical to value them.

Expenditure incurred to maintain these assets at full operating capability is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance in the year 
incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or recognised as impaired when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period the asset is derecognised.

The Otago Museum Trust Board owns an extensive collection of material and information relating to the natural, cultural and scientific 
heritage of the peoples of the world.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.
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22..88  ((cc))  IImmppaaiirrmmeenntt  ooff  NNoonn--FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss

22..99  SSuuppeerraannnnuuaattiioonn  SScchheemmeess

Defined Contribution Schemes

22..1100  PPrroovviissiioonnss

The Museum has considered the potential impact of COVID-19 as part of its impairment testing of assets on its statement of financial 
position. Because of the range of income streams and as a significant portion of revenue is not dependent on trading activities, there has 
been limited impact of the Governments response to COVID-19 on the organisation.

The primary function and purpose of the Otago Museum is the preservation and display of the extensive collection of heritage assets. 
These are the tasks that make up the bulk of the Otago Museum’s activities.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the 
relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in 
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

This means that much of the collection is valued at nil, or very old historical cost for those few items purchased. The Board is confident, 
however, that if the collection was to be sold, its market value would be very substantial.

The fact that most of the collection has a nil, or low, value for accounting purposes in no way reduces the true value of the collection or the 
care that is exercised in its conservation and exhibition.

At each reporting date, the Museum reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
independent from other assets, the Museum estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset 
where the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset is not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to generate net cash 
inflows and where the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic benefits or service potential. In 
assessing value in use for cash-generating assets, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the 
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation schemes are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial 
Performance as incurred.

Provisions are recognised when the Museum has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the 
amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated 
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is 
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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22..1111  EEmmppllooyyeeee  EEnnttiittlleemmeennttss

22..1122  SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  CCaasshh  FFlloowwss

Financing activities comprise the change in equity and debt structure of the Museum.

22..1133  EEqquuiittyy

·             Museum Capital Account
·             Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)
·             Available-for-Sale Revaluation Reserve
·             Equalisation Fund
·             Redevelopment Fund
·             Special & Trust Funds 

22..1144  RReesseerrvveess

The Museum’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are described in Note 20.

22..1155  BBuuddggeett  FFiigguurreess

22..1166  RRoouunnddiinngg

All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000).

Restricted reserves are subject to specific conditions. Expenditure or transfers from these reserves may be made only for certain specified 
purposes.

Museum reserves are reserves established by Museum decision. The Museum may alter them without reference to any third party. 
Expenditure or transfers to and from these reserves is based on established Museum policy.

The budget figures are those approved by the Museum at the beginning of the year in the Annual Plan. The budget figures have been 
prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted by the Museum for the 
preparation of the financial statements.

The components of equity are:

Reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of equity have been assigned. Reserves 
may be legally restricted or established by the Museum.

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, and annual leave when it is probable that settlement 
will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.  

Employee benefits that are due to be settled within 12 months after balance date are measured based on the accrued entitlements at 
current rates of pay. 

A liability and an expense are recognised for bonuses where there is a contractual obligation or where there is a past practice that has 
created a constructive obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at the present value 
of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Museum in respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date.

Investing activities are those activities relating to the acquisition and disposal of non-current assets.

Operating activities include cash received from all revenue sources of the Museum and record the cash payments made for the supply of 
goods and services.

Equity is the community’s interest in the Museum and is measured as total assets less total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified
into Museum Capital and a number of reserves. 
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33..  CCOOVVIIDD--1199

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared a global pandemic as a result of the outbreak and spread of COVID-19. In 
response, on Wednesday 25 March 2020 the New Zealand Government raised its Alert Level to 4 – a full lockdown for non-essential 
services which lasted for the following eight weeks. Since 25 March 2020, New Zealand has moved through the alert levels and on 8 June 
2020 moved to Alert Level 1 with all restrictions on domestic activity being lifted and only border restrictions in place. 

The Museums activities were deemed non-essential during the Alert Level 4 lockdown and the Museum was closed for an eight week 
period from 24 March 2020 to 15 May 2020.
Otago Museum has considered the impact of COVID-19: (1) in respect of its status as a going concern; (2) as part of its impairment testing 
of assets on its statement of financial position; and (3) in its critical accounting judgments and estimates. These are detailed in this and the 
following sections.
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44.. RREEVVEENNUUEE

Included within Public revenue are the following non-exchange transactions:

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

Donations 20 13
20 13

55.. EEXXPPEENNDDIITTUURREE

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

((aa)) EEmmppllooyyeeee  BBeenneeffiittss  EExxppeennssee

Salaries & Wages 5,169 4,896
Defined Contribution Plans 138 132

5,307 5,028

((bb)) OOtthheerr  EExxppeennsseess

Advertising 192 249
Insurance 264 232
IT Support 151 151
Maintenance 154 253
Other Expenses 2,758 2,925

3,519 3,810

66.. KKEEYY  MMAANNAAGGEEMMEENNTT  PPEERRSSOONNNNEELL  CCOOMMPPEENNSSAATTIIOONN

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

Short-Term Employee Benefits 817 825
Other Benefits

817 825

Trust Board Members 0.04 0.04
Museum Management Team 5 5

5.04 5.04

For financial reporting purposes, revenue received from local authorities in regards to payments under the Otago Museum 
Trust Board Act 1996 is considered non-exchange revenue. These amount to $4,527,045.57 in 2020 (2019: 
$4,309,667.91). Legacies & Bequests, Interest & Dividends, as well as Grants – Government & Other are also considered 
non-exchange revenue.

Key management personnel include Trust Board Members, the Chief Executive and other members of the Museum 
Management Team. With the exception of the Chairperson of the Board who receives a small honorarium, other Trust 
Board members do not receive any remuneration.

The full-time equivalent of key management personnel receiving remuneration is detailed below:
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77.. RREEMMUUNNEERRAATTIIOONN  OOFF  AAUUDDIITTOORRSS
22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

Audit Fees for Financial Statement Audit 62 30

88.. TTRRAADDEE  &&  OOTTHHEERR  RREECCEEIIVVAABBLLEESS

22002200 22001199
(a) Trade & Other Receivables $$000000 $$000000

Trade Receivables 186 247
Sundry Receivables & Accruals 72 133
Estimated Doubtful Debts
Goods & Services Tax (GST) Receivable 9 13

267 393

(b) The following are recognised as non-exchange transactions:

Grants Receivable 50 75
GST Receivable 9 13

59 88

All other trade & other receivables are considered as exchange transactions.

99.. IINNVVEENNTTOORRIIEESS
22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

Shop Stock 277 214
Café Stock 7 8
Venue Stock 4 8

288 230

The carrying amount of inventories pledged as security for liabilities is $Nil (2019: $Nil).

The Museum holds no collateral as security or other credit enhancements over receivables that are either past due or 
impaired. 

The auditor of Otago Museum Trust Board is Audit New Zealand on behalf of the Auditor- General. The audit fees for the 
2020 year include the cost of the 2019 audit of $29,140.04 and the accrual for the 2020 audit of $32,811.00
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1100.. OOTTHHEERR  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  AASSSSEETTSS
22002200 22001199

Available-for-Sale at Fair Value: $$000000 $$000000
Current
Deposits 1,736 1,039
Fixed Rate Bonds 273

1,736 1,312

Non-Current
Equity Securities- Company Shares 5,288 4,950
Fixed Rate Bonds 562 415

5,850 5,365

Disclosed in the financial statements as:
Current 1,736 1,312
Non-current 5,850 5,365

7,586 6,677

There are no impairment provisions for other financial assets.

Equity securities and fixed rate bonds are held in the name of Otago Museum Trust Board. Equity investments are 
measured at fair value with fair value determined by reference to published bid price quotations in an active market.

All banking activities relating to these Other Financial Assets are conducted by the Otago Museum Trust Board through its 
bank account.

19



72

OO
TTAA

GG
OO

  MM
UU

SSEE
UU

MM
  TT

RRUU
SSTT

  BB
OO

AARR
DD

NN
OO

TTEE
SS  

TTOO
  TT

HH
EE  

FFII
NN

AANN
CCII

AALL
  SS

TTAA
TTEE

MM
EENN

TTSS
  ((CC

oonn
tt..))

FFoo
rr  tt

hhee
  FF

iinn
aann

ccii
aall

  yy
eeaa

rr  ee
nndd

eedd
  33

00  
JJuu

nnee
  22

0022
00

1111
..

PPRR
OO

PPEE
RRTT

YY,,
  PP

LLAA
NN

TT  
AANN

DD  
EEQQ

UU
IIPP

MM
EENN

TT

((aa
))  PP

rroo
ppee

rrtt
yy,,

  PP
llaa

nntt
  aa

nndd
  EE

qquu
iipp

mm
eenn

tt  aa
tt  33

00  
JJuu

nnee
  22

0022
00

MM
uuss

eeuu
mm

  OO
ppee

rraa
ttiioo

nnaa
ll  AA

ssss
eett

ss
$$00

0000
$$00

0000
$$00

0000
$$00

0000
$$00

0000
$$00

0000
$$00

0000
$$00

0000
$$00

0000
AAtt

  CC
ooss

tt

La
nd

98
0

98
0

98
0

Bu
ild

in
gs

12
,9

00
10

4
13

,0
04

(5
,2

81
)

(5
43

)
(5

,8
24

)
7,

18
0

- D
isc

ov
er

y 
W

or
ld

2,
25

6
2,

25
6

(1
,5

63
)

(6
0)

(1
,6

23
)

63
3

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t -
 P

ha
se

 1

Bu
ild

in
g

3,
00

1
3,

00
1

(1
,9

06
)

(9
0)

(1
,9

96
)

1,
00

4
Fi

to
ut

 e
xh

ib
iti

on
s

24
6

24
6

(2
36

)
(2

)
(2

37
)

8
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s
36

2
36

2
(2

96
)

(6
)

(3
03

)
60

El
ec

tr
ic

al
50

9
50

9
(4

16
)

(9
)

(4
25

)
84

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t -
 P

ha
se

 2

Bu
ild

in
g

5,
41

0
5,

41
0

(2
,9

05
)

(1
62

)
(3

,0
67

)
2,

34
3

Fi
to

ut
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

s
2,

90
7

2,
90

7
(2

,7
72

)
(2

4)
(2

,7
96

)
11

1
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s
1,

97
1

1,
97

1
(1

,5
68

)
(3

8)
(1

,6
07

)
36

4
El

ec
tr

ic
al

45
1

45
1

(3
59

)
(9

)
(3

68
)

83
Co

m
pu

te
r E

qu
ip

m
en

t
1,

62
9

18
7

1,
81

6
(1

,2
13

)
(1

94
)

(1
,4

07
)

40
9

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Re

sp
on

se
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
7

7
(7

)
(7

)
Ex

hi
bi

ts
1,

76
2

15
1,

77
6

(4
64

)
(1

83
)

(6
46

)
1,

13
0

Fu
rn

itu
re

 &
 F

itt
in

gs
1,

53
8

50
1,

58
8

(1
,0

46
)

(8
2)

(1
,1

28
)

46
0

G
ol

de
n 

Ki
w

i L
ot

te
ry

 F
un

d
18

18
(1

8)
(1

8)
M

ot
or

 V
eh

ic
le

s
16

3
35

19
9

(1
14

)
(2

5)
(1

38
)

60
Ca

fé
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
96

4
10

0
(4

0)
(9

)
(4

9)
51

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
79

79
(3

)
(3

)
77

3366
,,22

0055
4477

44
3366

,,66
8800

((22
00,,

2200
44))

((11
,,44

3388
))

((22
11,,

6644
22))

1155
,,00

3388

AAcc
ccuu

mm
uull

aatt
eedd

  
DD

eepp
rree

ccii
aatt

iioo
nn  

RRee
vvee

rrss
eedd

  oo
nn  

DD
iiss

ppoo
ssaa

ll
CCaa

rrrr
yyii

nngg
  AA

mm
oouu

nntt
  33

00  
JJuu

nnee
  22

0022
00

AAcc
ccuu

mm
uull

aatt
eedd

  
DD

eepp
rree

ccii
aatt

iioo
nn  

&&
  

IImm
ppaa

iirrmm
eenn

tt  CC
hhaa

nngg
eess

  
3300

  JJuu
nnee

  22
0022

00

AAcc
ccuu

mm
uull

aatt
eedd

  
DD

eepp
rree

ccii
aatt

iioo
nn  

&&
  

IImm
ppaa

iirrmm
eenn

tt  CC
hhaa

nngg
eess

  11
  

JJuu
llyy

  22
0011

99
CCoo

sstt
//  VV

aall
uuaa

ttiioo
nn  

3300
  

JJuu
nnee

  22
0022

00
DD

eepp
rree

ccii
aatt

iioo
nn  

EExx
ppee

nnss
ee

CCoo
sstt

//  VV
aall

uuaa
ttiioo

nn  
11  

JJuu
llyy

  
2200

1199
AAdd

ddii
ttiioo

nnss
DD

iiss
ppoo

ssaa
llss

20



73

OO
TTAA

GG
OO

  MM
UU

SSEE
UU

MM
  TT

RRUU
SSTT

  BB
OO

AARR
DD

NN
OO

TTEE
SS  

TTOO
  TT

HH
EE  

FFII
NN

AANN
CCII

AALL
  SS

TTAA
TTEE

MM
EENN

TTSS
  ((CC

oonn
tt..))

FFoo
rr  tt

hhee
  FF

iinn
aann

ccii
aall

  yy
eeaa

rr  ee
nndd

eedd
  33

00  
JJuu

nnee
  22

0022
00

1111
..

PPRR
OO

PPEE
RRTT

YY,,
  PP

LLAA
NN

TT  
AANN

DD  
EEQQ

UU
IIPP

MM
EENN

TT

((bb
))  PP

rroo
ppee

rrtt
yy,,

  PP
llaa

nntt
  aa

nndd
  EE

qquu
iipp

mm
eenn

tt  aa
tt  33

00  
JJuu

nnee
  22

0011
99

$$00
0000

$$00
0000

$$00
0000

$$00
0000

$$00
0000

$$00
0000

$$00
0000

$$00
0000

$$00
0000

MM
uuss

eeuu
mm

  OO
ppee

rraa
ttiioo

nnaa
ll  AA

ssss
eett

ss

AAtt
  CC

ooss
tt

La
nd

98
0

98
0

98
0

Bu
ild

in
gs

12
,7

00
20

0
12

,9
00

(4
,7

13
)

(5
69

)
(5

,2
81

)
7,

61
8

- D
isc

ov
er

y 
W

or
ld

2,
25

6
2,

25
6

(1
,5

03
)

(6
0)

(1
,5

63
)

69
3

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t -
 P

ha
se

 1

Bu
ild

in
g

3,
00

1
3,

00
1

(1
,8

16
)

(9
0)

(1
,9

06
)

1,
09

4
Fi

to
ut

 e
xh

ib
iti

on
s

24
6

24
6

(2
33

)
(2

)
(2

36
)

10
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s
36

2
36

2
(2

89
)

(7
)

(2
96

)
66

El
ec

tr
ic

al
50

9
50

9
(4

07
)

(1
0)

(4
16

)
93

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t -
 P

ha
se

 2

Bu
ild

in
g

5,
41

0
5,

41
0

(2
,7

42
)

(1
62

)
(2

,9
05

)
2,

50
5

Fi
to

ut
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

s
2,

90
7

2,
90

7
(2

,7
42

)
(3

0)
(2

,7
72

)
13

5
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s
1,

97
1

1,
97

1
(1

,5
26

)
(4

2)
(1

,5
68

)
40

3
El

ec
tr

ic
al

45
1

45
1

(3
49

)
(1

0)
(3

59
)

92
Co

m
pu

te
r E

qu
ip

m
en

t
1,

37
8

25
1

1,
62

9
(1

,0
48

)
(1

65
)

(1
,2

13
)

41
6

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Re

sp
on

se
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
7

7
(7

)
(7

)
Ex

hi
bi

ts
1,

68
7

75
1,

76
2

(2
00

)
(2

64
)

(4
64

)
1,

29
8

Fu
rn

itu
re

 &
 F

itt
in

gs
1,

44
5

93
1,

53
8

(9
67

)
(8

0)
(1

,0
46

)
49

2
G

ol
de

n 
Ki

w
i L

ot
te

ry
 F

un
d

18
18

(1
8)

(1
8)

M
ot

or
 V

eh
ic

le
s

16
3

16
3

(9
3)

(2
1)

(1
14

)
49

Ca
fé

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

74
22

96
(3

0)
(1

0)
(4

0)
56

3355
,,55

6655
6644

11
3366

,,22
0055

((11
88,,

6688
33))

((11
,,55

2211
))

((22
00,,

2200
44))

1166
,,00

0011

In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

Co
st

s i
s W

or
k 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s o

f $
70

,4
30

.0
0.

A Acc
ccuu

mm
uull

aatt
eedd

  
DD

eepp
rree

ccii
aatt

iioo
nn  

&&
  

IImm
ppaa

iirrmm
eenn

tt  CC
hhaa

nngg
eess

  
3300

  JJuu
nnee

  22
0011

99

AAcc
ccuu

mm
uull

aatt
eedd

  
DD

eepp
rree

ccii
aatt

iioo
nn  

RRee
vvee

rrss
eedd

  oo
nn  

DD
iiss

ppoo
ssaa

ll

AAcc
ccuu

mm
uull

aatt
eedd

  
DD

eepp
rree

ccii
aatt

iioo
nn  

&&
  

IImm
ppaa

iirrmm
eenn

tt  CC
hhaa

nngg
eess

  11
  

JJuu
llyy

  22
0011

88
CCaa

rrrr
yyii

nngg
  AA

mm
oouu

nntt
  33

00  
JJuu

nnee
  22

0011
99

CCoo
sstt

//  VV
aall

uuaa
ttiioo

nn  
3300

  
JJuu

nnee
  22

0011
99

DD
eepp

rree
ccii

aatt
iioo

nn  
EExx

ppee
nnss

ee
CCoo

sstt
//  VV

aall
uuaa

ttiioo
nn  

11  
JJuu

llyy
  

2200
1188

AAdd
ddii

ttiioo
nnss

DD
iiss

ppoo
ssaa

llss

21



74

OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

1122.. IInnttaannggiibbllee  AAsssseettss

Website Design
Opening Balance 6 11
Additions
Less Amortisation 3 6
Closing Balance 3 6

Website design costs are capitalised and amortised at 50%DV.

1133.. TTRRAADDEE  &&  OOTTHHEERR  PPAAYYAABBLLEESS

Trade Payables (i) 231 513
Other Accrued Charges (ii) 519 568
COVID-19 Wage Subsidy 203

953 1,081

(i) The average credit period on purchases is 30 days.  

(ii)

22002200 22001199
1144.. EEMMPPLLOOYYEEEE  EENNTTIITTLLEEMMEENNTTSS $$000000 $$000000

Accrued Salary & Wages 106 78
Annual Leave 329 285

435 362

1155.. RREESSEERRVVEESS

Available-for-Sale Revaluation Reserve (a) 2,203 1,943
Equalisation Fund (b) 337 329
Trust Funds (c) 6,402 6,185
Special Funds (d) 4,339 4,239
Unallocated Accrued Interest 21 16

13,302 12,712

((aa))  AAvvaaiillaabbllee--ffoorr--SSaallee  RReevvaalluuaattiioonn  RReesseerrvvee
Balance at Beginning of Year 1,943 1,778
Realised gains/losses on disposal of shares 77 120
Adjusting for market value movements 260 165
Valuation Gain/(Loss) Recognised 337 285

(Gain)/Loss transferred to Revenue Statement on Sale of
Financial Assets (77) (120)
Balance at End of Year 2,203 1,943

The Museum holds unspent grant funding received, included in cash & cash equivalents, of $480,389.80 (2019: 
$558,846.48) that is subject to conditions. The restrictions generally specify how the grant is required to be 
spent providing specified deliverables of the grant arrangement, including repayment of unspent funding. This 
grant funding is considered a non-exchange transaction.

The available-for-sale revaluation reserve represents gains (net) on revaluation of financial assets held.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

1155.. RREESSEERRVVEESS  ccoonntt..

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

((bb))  EEqquuaalliissaattiioonn  FFuunndd
Balance at Beginning of Year 329 320
Interest Transfer 8 9
Balance at End of Year 337 329

NNootteess

((cc))  TTrruusstt  FFuunnddss  ((RReessttrriicctteedd  &&  UUnnrreessttrriicctteedd  RReesseerrvveess))  14(e)

Balance at Beginning of Year 6,185 5,927

Transfer from/(to) Retained Earnings 217 258

Balance at End of Year 6,402 6,185

NNootteess 22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

((dd))  SSppeecciiaall  FFuunnddss  ((MMuusseeuumm  RReesseerrvveess)) 14(f)

Balance at Beginning of Year 4,239 4,332

Transfer from/(to) Retained Earnings 100 (93)

Balance at End of Year 4,339 4,239

Special Funds are funds the Board have agreed to allocate for a specific purpose and have come into existence due to 
passing of various Board resolutions over time. Special Funds are different from Trust Funds in that they do not require a 
formal Board resolution. The Director is able to authorise expenditure as long as it is in line with the purpose of the fund, 
and within his delegated authority.  The Director then notes and reports this spending at the subsequent Audit, Finance & 
Risk Committee (AFRM) and Board meetings. 

A fund established to enable the board to handle expenditure on major maintenance projects which occur irregularly.

Trust Funds are funds received by gift, bequest or donations of significant sizes and their purpose and use is directed by a 
Trust Deed or Will. Spending of Trust Fund money is authorised by way of Board resolution.  Where it is not practical to get 
approve via Board resolution prior to purchase that approval in principle can be gained via email to the Audit, Finance & 
Risk Committee (AFRM), within designated limits, with full ratification and reporting at subsequent AFRM and Board 
meetings.  
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OTAGO MUSEUM TRUST BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
For the Financial year ended 30 June 2020

1155  ((   ee)) TTrruusstt  FFuunnddss

((ii))  TTrruusstt  FFuunnddss  --  UUnnrreessttrriicctteedd

BBaallaannccee BBaallaannccee CCaappiittaall RReevveennuuee
FFuunndd 0011//0077//22001199 3300//0066//22002200

DDeettaaiill $$ DDeettaaiill $$
Elizabeth Alexander

184
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 2 191 88 103
Investment Revenue 4

De Beer Publications & 
Research 1,358

Gain on Sale of 
Shares 17 1,406 373 1,034
Investment Revenue 31

Fairweather 383
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 5 397 142 255
Investment Revenue 9

Gollan 246
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 3 255 42 213
Investment Revenue 6

Brenda Joyce Harding
127

Gain on Sale of 
Shares 2 132 40 91
Investment Revenue 3

Lyders 221
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 3 229 40 189
Investment Revenue 5

Peter Snow MAC Fund
01

Gain on Sale of 
Shares 0 01 0 01
Investment Revenue 0

TToottaall 22,,552211 9900 00 22,,661111 772255 11,,888866

((iiii))  TTrruusstt  FFuunnddss  --  RReessttrriicctteedd

BBaallaannccee BBaallaannccee CCaappiittaall RReevveennuuee
FFuunndd 0011//0077//22001199 3300//0066//22002200

DDeettaaiill $$ DDeettaaiill $$
Beth & Mark Anderson

110
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 1 114 75 39
Investment Revenue 3

Avice Bowbyes - 
Costumes 230

Gain on Sale of 
Shares 3 238 69 169
Investment Revenue 5

Colquhoun 579
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 7 Purchases - Jewellery 600 174 426
Investment Revenue 13

Fairweather - 
Collections 614

Gain on Sale of 
Shares 8

Purchase - Natural 
History 3 633 200 434

Investment Revenue 14

Cowie Nichols 27
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 28 3 25
Investment Revenue 1

Cyril Nichols 1,178
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 15 1,220 223 997
Investment Revenue 27

Willi Fels 926
Gain on Sale of 
Shares 12 959 255 705
Investment Revenue 21

TToottaall 33,,666644 113311 33 33,,779922 999977 22,,779955

TTOOTTAALL  TTRRUUSSTT  FFUUNNDDSS 66,,118855 222200 33 66,,440022 11,,772211 44,,668811

DDeedduucctt
EExxppeennddiittuurree  &&  TTrraannssffeerrss

AAdddd  RReevveennuuee  &&  
TTrraannssffeerrss

DDeedduucctt
EExxppeennddiittuurree  &&  TTrraannssffeerrss

AAdddd  RReevveennuuee  &&  
TTrraannssffeerrss
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OTAGO MUSEUM TRUST BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
For the Financial year ended 30 June 2020

1155  ((ff)) SSppeecciiaall  FFuunnddss

((ii))  SSppeecciiaall  FFuunnddss  --  UUnnrreessttrriicctteedd

BBaallaannccee BBaallaannccee CCaappiittaall RReevveennuuee
FFuunndd 0011//0077//22001199 3300//0066//22002200

DDeettaaiill $$000000 DDeettaaiill $$000000
53 Est. E.O. Naylor 53 53

Barclay 47 Donations 110
Transfer to General 
Funds 157

Loss of Heart 
Compensation 2,349 2,349 1,107 1,243

General Funds
Transfer from Barclay 157

Purchase - Equipment
31 284 284

Transfer from 
Retirement Leave 159

Conservation Materials
145 145 145

Emergency Response 48 48 48

Freda Stucky 271 271 271

Māori Ethnology 106 106 106

Purchase of Collections
80 80 80

Scientific Publications 75 75 75

Special Exhibitions & 
Programmes 348 348 348

Study & Training 82 82 82

Project & Development 
Fund 406

Transfer Income & 
Expenditure 21 427 427

Retirement Leave 229
Transfer to General 
Funds 159 70 70

TToottaall 44,,223399 444477 334477 44,,333399 11,,110077 33,,223322

Allocation for Special 
Purposes

DDeedduucctt
EExxppeennddiittuurree  &&  TTrraannssffeerrss

AAdddd  RReevveennuuee  &&  
TTrraannssffeerrss
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

1166.. CCAAPPIITTAALL  

AAccccuummuullaatteedd  SSuurrpplluuss//((DDeeffiicciitt))

Balance at Beginning of Year 12,117 13,778

Plus Exhibits & Equipment Purchased from:
Restricted & Museum Reserves 34 130

Net surplus/(Deficit) (363) (1,494)

Transfers from/(to) Reserves:
Restricted & Museum Reserves (21) (7)
Equalisation Fund (8) (9)
Restricted Reserves (Special Funds) (110) (20)
Restricted Reserves (Trust Funds) (220) (268)
Unallocated Accrued Interest (5) 7

Balance at End of Year 11,424 12,117

1177.. CCOOMMMMIITTMMEENNTTSS  FFOORR  EEXXPPEENNDDIITTUURREE

((aa)) CCaappiittaall  &&  OOtthheerr  EExxppeennddiittuurree  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss

·         Equipment

((bb)) OOppeerraattiinngg  CCoommmmiittmmeennttss

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

No later than one year 3 3
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Total Operating Lease Commitments 3 3

Capital commitments at 30 June 2020 were $28,514.00 (30 June 2019: $36,872.00). These affect the following asset classes:

At 30 June, 2020, the Otago Museum had been awarded total grant funding from the Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment 
(MBIE) of $2,239,030.07 (2019: $1,683,129.89). To date costs of $1,868,552.77 (2019: $1,447,053.12) had been paid out to funding 
recipients, with $421,499.48 of these costs paid during the 2020 year. There are $75,000.12 (2019: $15,000.42) still to be received from 
MBIE. As at balance date, there were funds of $323,838.68 (2019: $221,076.56) to be paid out during 2020. There is also a further 
$373,456.22 (2019: $425,383.12) of committed grant expenditure that has been awarded but not yet spent. 

The Otago Museum Trust Board holds a lease for the H D Skinner Annex building located on the Museum Reserve.

$28,514.00

During the 2018 year, the Otago Museum commenced work in redesigning the Café/Hutton Theatre area. As at 30 June 2020 there were 
no contractual commitments in relation to this project.
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

1188.. CCOONNTTIINNGGEENNTT  LLIIAABBIILLIITTIIEESS  &&  CCOONNTTIINNGGEENNTT  AASSSSEETTSS

CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess

CCoonnttiinnggeenntt  AAsssseettss

There were no contingent assets at 30 June, 2020 (2019: Nil).

1199.. RREELLAATTEEDD  PPAARRTTYY  DDIISSCCLLOOSSUURREESS

CCoonnttrriibbuuttiinngg  LLooccaall  AAuutthhoorriittiieess

TTrraannssaaccttiioonnss  wwiitthh  RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttiieess

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

Central Otago District Council Levy Received 30 27
Clutha District Council Levy Received 125 123
Dunedin City Council Levy Received 4,315 4,105
Waitaki District Council Levy Received 57 54
Dunedin City Council Other 7 15
Friends of the Museum Association Other 1
Otago University Other 215 357

4,750 4,682

Dunedin City Council Rates & Rent Paid (115) (107)
Dunedin City Council Other (6)
Central Otago District Council Other ()
Otago University Other (40) (33)

(155) (146)

During the Café/Hutton Theatre improvements project in 2019, asbestos was discovered within the building. There is a contingent
liability at 30 June, 2020 to remedy this. The same contingent liability existed in the prior year.

Under the Otago Museum Trust Board Act, 1996 contributing authorities are required to provide certain levels of funding to the Otago
Museum.

During the year the following receipts (payments) were received from (made to) contributing authorities and other related
customers/suppliers. These were conducted on normal commercial terms, with the exception of rent charged for the H D Skinner Annex
Building.

The Otago Museum also received a rates grant from the Dunedin City Council totalling $7,439.00 (2019: $7,678.00) as well as $75,000.00
contribution towards the Shanghai Natural History Museum project (2019: Discovery World upgrade $75,000.00).

During the year the following receipts (payments) were received from (made to) Board members and associated personnel. These were
conducted on normal commercial terms:
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

David Hutchinson (5)
Innovatio Limited (8)

(5) (8)

2200.. NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWW  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT

((aa)) RReeccoonncciilliiaattiioonn  ooff  CCaasshh  &&  CCaasshh  EEqquuiivvaalleennttss

22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,844 2,852
2,844 2,852

2211.. FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  IINNSSTTRRUUMMEENNTTSS

((aa)) CCaatteeggoorriieess  ooff  FFiinnaanncciiaall  IInnssttrruummeennttss
22002200 22001199
$$000000 $$000000

FFiinnaanncciiaall  AAsssseettss

LLooaannss  aanndd  RReecceeiivvaabblleess
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,844 2,852
Trade & Other Receivables 267 393
Other Financial Assets:
·      Term Deposits 1,736 1,039

HHeelldd  ttoo  MMaattuurriittyy
Listed Bonds 562 688

FFaaiirr  VVaalluuee  TThhrroouugghh  OOtthheerr  RReevveennuuee  aanndd  EExxppeennssee
Other Financial Assets:
Listed Shares 5,288 4,950
Unlisted Shares
Listed Bonds 562 688

FFiinnaanncciiaall  LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  aatt  AAmmoorrttiisseedd  CCoosstt
Trade & Other Payables 953 1,081

The payments to Innovatio Limited are for remuneration for the Chair of the Board. All transactions were completed on normal 
commercial terms.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks and 
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
financial year as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
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OOTTAAGGOO  MMUUSSEEUUMM  TTRRUUSSTT  BBOOAARRDD
NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCoonntt..))
FFoorr  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3300  JJuunnee  22002200

2222.. SSUUBBSSEEQQUUEENNTT  EEVVEENNTTSS

There are no significant events subsequent to balance date.

2233.. AANNNNUUAALL  RREEPPOORRTT

The Otago Museum Trust Board Act (1996) requires adoption of the audited Annual Report by 30 November.
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OTAGO MUSEUM 
419 Great King St, Dunedin

www.otagomuseum.nz


